
 

 

VILLAGE  of  LAWTON 

VILLAGE COUNCIL MEETING 

125 S. MAIN STREET, LAWTON, MI 49065 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 14TH, 2021 – 7:00 P.M. 
please silence your cell phones 

 

AGENDA 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER  

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of the December 14th, 2021 Agenda 

B. Approval of the November 23rd, 2021 Minutes  

C. Approval of Disbursements in the amount of $89,187.70 

V. COMMUNICATIONS / CORRESPONDENCE / PRESENTATIONS 

A. DNR Passport Grant Award $74,000 for Improvements at Lewis Park  

B. MEDC RRC Technical Assistance Award $30,000 for Master Plan & Zoning Ordinance 

VI. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS – (Please keep comments to 3 minutes) 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS / APPOINTMENTS / PROCLAMATIONS  

VIII. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Water and Sewer Rate Review…………………………………………………..Discussion 

  



 

 

 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Set 2022 Meeting Schedule………………………………………..….…………...Approve 

X. BOARD, COMMITTEE, AND STAFF REPORTS 

A.  Village Manager – Lisa Imus  

B.   Department of Public Works – Todd Hackenberg 

C.   Police Department – Jeff Mack 

D. Fire Department – Eric Dudek 

E.   Planning Commission – Judy Peterson 

F.   Downtown Development Authority (DDA) – Gail Dudek 

G.   Community & Economic Development Committee (CEDC) – Nicole Smith 

H.   Finance and Administration Committee – Josh Appleby 

I.   Public Safety Committee – Ren Turner 

J.   Public Services Committee – Ryan Tanis 

K.   Water and Sewer Committee – Eric Dudek 

X. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

XI. ADJOURNMENT - NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE – January 11th, 2022 

 
 
The Village of Lawton follows the Americans w/ Disabilities Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities planning to attend this meeting 
and require accommodations, or those who have questions regarding the accessibility of this meeting or the facilities, are requested 
to contact the Village Clerk, at (269) 624-6407 or bellj@lawtonmi.gov to allow the Village to make reasonable accommodations. If 
you have questions or comments, and you are unable to make the meeting, forward to the Village Manager at imusl@lawtonmi.gov.  
  

Posted December 3, 2021, for the VILLAGE OF LAWTON in VAN BUREN COUNTY, MICHIGAN www.lawtonmi.gov 
269.624.6407 

http://www.lawtonmi.gov/
http://www.lawtonmi.gov/
http://www.lawtonmi.gov/


VILLAGE OF LAWTON 
Regular Meeting Minutes – Tuesday November 23, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. 

  Village Hall – 125 S. Main Street, Lawton MI 49065 
WWW.LAWTONMI.GOV    269.624.6407 

 
 

MINUTES 

I.  CALL TO ORDER: President Appleby called the November 23, 2021, meeting of the Lawton Village 

Council to order at 6:00 p.m. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

III.  ROLL CALL: Present: President Appleby. Trustees: E. Dudek, N. Smith, R. Tanis, J. Peterson, and R. 

Turner. G. Dudek entered the meeting at 6:30.   Others present: Village Manager Imus, Village Clerk Bell 

and one other guest.  

IV. CONSENT AGENDA:  The Consent Agenda included the approval of the November 23, 2021, Council 

Agenda, and the November 9, 2021, Council Meeting Minutes. Peterson made a motion to approve the 

Consent Agenda with corrections.  Turner seconded the motion.  A unanimous voice vote carried the 

motion.  

V. COMMUNICATIONS, CORRESPONDENCE AND PRESENTATIONS:   

VI. The Village has received correspondence from Comcast Corp regarding system rate increases and 

channel decreases.  Resolution 24-2021 stipulating a review of services, service quality, and service 

areas provided for in the Village and to work with the Village to locate the poor service and lapse service 

in order to establish a strategy to enhance service to the entire village.  Turner motioned to approve 

Resolution 24-2021 with support from Smith.  A roll call vote was taken with 6 council members in favor, 

G. Dudek did not vote.  

VII. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS:  None. 

VIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS / APPOINTMENTS:  

A. Turner made a motion to open a Public Hearing to hear comment on issuance of one or more 

series of Senior Living Revenue Bonds regarding White Oaks Randall Residence located at 300 

White Oak Road, Lawton, MI in an amount not to exceed $50,090.000.00.  With support from 

Smith, a unanimous voice vote opened the public Hearing. 

Manager Imus explained that the Randall Residence on White Oak Drive was being purchased 

by a Non-Profit using municipal bonds.  The purpose of the public hearing was to hear comment 

http://www.lawtonmi.gov/


Village of Lawton  2 

on the project and then pass a resolution to approve the sale of tax exempted bonds that will be 

used to purchase Randall Residence.  Manager Imus presented an agreement, signed by Randall 

Residence, guaranteeing that the Village be made whole if a tax-exempt status was granted to 

the property.  The agreement maintained that the Village would continue to receive the allocated 

tax revenue through a PILOT (Payment in Lieu of Taxes) Plan, including Village operating, library 

and street taxes. Chris Randall, CEO with the Randall Residence, spoke to the need for the 

bonding and the challenges the residence faced during the pandemic. 

Turner, supported by E. Dudek, made a motion to close the Public Hearing.  A unanimous voice 

vote closed the hearing. 

Peterson made a motion, supported by Turner, to authorize the Village Council President and 

the Village Manager to execute the agreement with QSH/Midwest, LLC subject to our Attorney’s 

final language as agreed upon between the parties.  A unanimous roll call vote carried the motion. 

IX. EXISTING BUSINESS:  NONE 

X. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. E. Dudek made a motion to approve Resolution 23-2021, a Resolution approving the Issuance of 

one or more series of Senior Living Revenue Bonds regarding White Oaks Randall Residence in an 

amount not to exceed $50,090,000,  seconded by Turner.   A roll call vote was taken with full 

approval.  

XI. BOARD, COMMITTEE, AND STAFF REPORTS: None 

XII. COUNCIL COMMENTS:  None     

XIII. ADJOURNMENT: 

 Turner, supported by Smith, made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:55 p.m.  A voice vote was 

taken with unanimous approval of those present. The next regular scheduled meeting is December 7, 

2021. 

   

     Respectfully Submitted by Joni Bell, Village Clerk 





Van Buren Conservation District
November 2021 Program Update
Submitted by Emilly Hickmott, Deputy Administrator

● Ag Conservation/Water Quality Projects (Erin Fuller, Colleen Forestieri, Hannah Hudson) - Staff
worked on coordinating engineering, permitting and construction for the installation of four water
control structures on a large farm field adjacent to Mill Creek. These structures are part of a
comprehensive drainage water management system and research project with the University of Notre
Dame and Michigan State University. This research will allow us to share real-world data with local
farmers to help them decide what conservation practices might fit their farm needs as well as help
improve water quality.

● SWxSW Corner CISMA (Cooperative Invasive Species Management Area) (Abbie Bristol, Alex
Florian, Andrew Michalek) - The team completed its application for the Michigan Invasive Species
Grant program, which provides sustaining funding for CISMAs in Michigan. We also completed
reporting on two MISGP grants we already hold. Our Strike team was also able to spray Japanese
knotweed and Phragmites in the right of way for the Van Buren Road Commission.

● MAEAP (Kyle Mead) - The technician has been making many contacts to reach farmers that are due for
MAEAP re-verification as well as following up with farmers that are new to MAEAP. One grower is
close to verification after 15 years of effort. Several verification appointments are scheduled for new and
repeat farms in November.

● National Association of Conservation Districts Technical Assistance (Lucas Hartman) - The 2019
grant was completed, and the final report was submitted. Additional training and preparatory work was
done to prepare for upcoming deadlines.

● Outreach (Jacob Diljak) - October saw a lot of coordination in a multitude of exciting projects for the
VBCD. The coordinator is working with MDNR and local partnering organizations to plant tree
seedlings in Van Buren State Park next Spring. Work continues on the 2022 VBCD calendar, 2021
Annual Report, and 2022 Food, Farm, Fun Guide.

● Produce Safety (Patrick Gordon) - Various training sessions and conferences were attended as a wrap
up to the growing season for most Southwestern Michigan growers. Farm visits were completed in
Allegan and Berrien Counties.

● Resource Recovery Recycling (Emilly
Hickmott) - Preparations were made for
the 2022 resource recovery collection
season, including date setting, partner and
vendor commitments, and diagram
creation. Most Van Buren County
residents will receive a 1⁄3 sheet flyer
with their Winter 2021 tax bill that will
include collection season information
along with information about year-round
electronic recycling, tree seedling sale,
and invasive species management.

For more information on any of our programs and projects,
please email us at info@vanburencd.org, call us at 269-657-4030x5 or visit the VBCD website at

www.VanBurenCD.org.
1035 E. Michigan Avenue, Paw Paw, Michigan 49079

269.657.4030 x5  ⬥  www.VanBurenCD.org

mailto:info@vanburencd.org
http://www.vanburencd.org


Sc
or

e
Ap

pl
ic
an

t 
Co

un
ty

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Aw
ar

d 
Am

ou
nt

21
5

Ci
ty

 o
f W

at
er

vl
ie

t
Be

rr
ie

n
H

ay
s 

D
og

 P
ar

k
$7

1,
60

0.
00

 
20

5
H

om
es

te
ad

 T
ow

ns
hi

p
Be

nz
ie

Pl
at

te
 R

iv
er

 P
ar

k 
Bo

ar
dw

al
k 

an
d 

Fi
sh

in
g 

$1
50

,0
00

.0
0 

20
5

H
ill

m
an

 T
ow

ns
hi

p
M
on

tm
or
en

cy
 

To
ur

na
m

en
t/

Ti
ge

r 
Pa

w
 P

ar
k 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

$1
50

,0
00

.0
0 

20
5

Ci
ty

 o
f S

tu
rg

is
St

. J
os

ep
h

St
ur

gi
s 

Sp
la

sh
 P

ad
$1

50
,0

00
.0

0 
20

5
Ci

ty
 o

f M
ar

le
tt

e
Sa

ni
la

c
M

ar
le

tt
e 

Po
ol

 H
ou

se
 R

en
ov

at
io

ns
$1

50
,0

00
.0

0 
20

0
Vi

lla
ge

 o
f E

lk
to

n
H

ur
on

Ac
ke

rm
an

 P
ar

k 
W

al
ki

ng
 P

at
h 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

$1
50

,0
00

.0
0 

20
0

Vi
lla

ge
 o

f S
te

ve
ns

vi
lle

Be
rr

ie
n

H
ic

ko
ry

 C
re

ek
 P

ar
k 

Pa
vi

lio
n

$1
50

,0
00

.0
0 

20
0

Vi
lla

ge
 o

f C
ap

ac
St

. C
la

ir
Al

dr
ic

h 
Pa

rk
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
$4

5,
00

0.
00

 
20

0
Vi

lla
ge

 o
f L

aw
to

n
Va

n 
Bu

re
n

Ch
an

cy
 L

ew
is

 P
ar

k 
Re

no
va

tio
ns

$7
4,

00
0.

00
 

19
5

Sk
an

di
a 

To
w

ns
hi

p
M

ar
qu

et
te

Sk
an

di
a 

To
w

ns
hi

p 
H

al
l P

ar
k 

Re
no

va
tio

n
$1

42
,5

00
.0

0 
19

5
Ci

ty
 o

f I
sh

pe
m

in
g

M
ar

qu
et

te
Te

al
 L

ak
e 

W
at

er
 T

ra
il

$1
14

,0
00

.0
0 

19
0

Vi
lla

ge
 o

f E
m

pi
re

Le
el

an
au

Sh
al

da
 P

ar
k 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

$1
50

,0
00

.0
0 

18
5

Ca
sc

o 
To

w
ns

hi
p

St
. C

la
ir

Ca
sc

o 
To

w
ns

hi
p 

Be
lle

 R
iv

er
 P

ar
k 

Pi
cn

ic
 A

re
a

$5
6,

20
0.

00
 

18
5

Ci
ty

 o
f L

an
si

ng
In
gh

am
 

Fr
an

ce
s 

Pa
rk

 A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
Sh

ad
e 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
$1

50
,0

00
.0

0 

18
5

Ar
en

ac
 C

ou
nt

y
Ar

en
ac

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f C

am
pg

ro
un

d 
at

 O
as

is
 L

ak
e 

Pa
rk

$1
12

,5
00

.0
0 

18
5

Ci
ty

 o
f C

ha
rl

ev
oi

x
Ch

ar
le

vo
ix

M
ic

hi
ga

n 
Be

ac
h 

U
pl

an
d 

Re
no

va
tio

n 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

$1
39

,5
00

.0
0 

20
21

 R
EC

R
EA

TI
O

N
 P

AS
SP

O
R

T 
G

R
AN

T 
AW

AR
D

S

To
ta

l o
f $

1,
95

5,
30

0 
in

 g
ra

nt
 a

w
ar

ds
To

ta
l o

f 1
6 

pr
oj

ec
ts





From: Julia Turnbull (MEDC)
To: Lisa Imus
Cc: Suzanne Schulz
Subject: Lawton - RRC TA Funding Decision (Approved!)
Date: Tuesday, November 30, 2021 4:42:52 PM
Attachments: image001.png

RRC TA Form 2 - Lawton Master Plan and Zoning Update.pdf

Hi Lisa –
 
I am pleased to inform you that the Village of Lawton’s request for $30,000 in RRC TA Match Funding
to support the Master Plan and Zoning update, has been approved by the team! Please see the
completed RRC TA Match Request Form (Form 2) which includes details on the decision, including
proposed payment milestones and amounts (this is the same as we discussed previously).
 
The next step is for the community to sign a formal grant agreement with MEDC.
 

 
I will be submitting the information into our internal system to get the process moving. Grant
agreements can take upwards of one month to complete but we always aim for sooner when
possible.
 
Thanks!
 
Julia Turnbull

RRC Planner, Redevelopment Ready Communities®  
Community Development
Michigan Economic Development Corporation
300 N. Washington Square   |   Lansing, MI  48913  
Mobile:  517.599.1752
turnbullj2@michigan.org
 
Want to receive direct newsletter updates from the MEDC’s Community Development Department?
Sign up for the MEDC’s Community Development Newsletter!

mailto:turnbullj2@michigan.org
mailto:imusl@lawtonmi.gov
mailto:schulzs@progressiveae.com
https://www.miplace.org/
mailto:turnbullj2@michigan.org
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fclick.michiganbusiness.org%2FMzMxLVhSVy0zODcAAAF9C2J2dJ0e3G07jNEUmlzrvbgkUqM8WAmkuHXNEO0RapWry_sACcfA-reJxoLRiR_NGBDY9m4%3D&data=04%7C01%7Craineros%40michigan.org%7C91361e7e7eee4ae05c5408d972482024%7Ce1b7ea2e68834a89aeb93c559a238b28%7C0%7C0%7C637666476381404693%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=XfLX6PvZgyT0cDir%2F1GMgH2rfpyDcJWEg0DnDWj%2B%2BQg%3D&reserved=0




Redevelopment Ready Communities (RRC) 
Technical Assistance (TA) Match Funding  
Formal Funding Request 


REQUEST INFORMATION (Completed by Community) 


Project Title:


Project Summary:
A brief description of the project is fine. At a minimum, note major steps/components and which best practices are being met by this project.


Estimated month/year of completion:


Community Point of Contact (Name/Title): 


Name & Title of Authorized Signer(s) (i.e. for grant agreements):  


Does the community have an account in SIGMA? 


Does the community have Electronic Fund Transfers (EFTs) set up in SIGMA?


Project Cost (Total):


Source of local government match:


Has the local match been confirmed?


Proposed Split (50/50, 75/25, etc. – include dollar amounts too):


Requested Payment Schedule/Milestones 
The grant agreement will include at least two payments. Use this space to propose payment milestones if the community has particular ideas in mind.  
Milestones can expand beyond the specific project to include commitments to complete other RRC best practices. If left blank, the team will craft milestones 
which will be confirmed with the community prior to drafting the grant agreement.


Note: Go to File -> Save As to save the file prior to filling it out. This will ensure it saves correctly.


This is the second form to be completed by a community seeking RRC TA Match Funding. The 
information in this form will be used to by the RRC Team to make a final determination of funding for 
the requested project. Information from this form will be incorporated into the official grant 
agreement. For full details on the RRC TA Match Funding process, visit 
www.miplace.org/rrctamatch.  A full scope and budget must be submitted with this request.



http://www.miplace.org/rrctamatch





CONFIRMATION & ACCURACY OF INFORMATION (Completed by Community) 


The community has informed the selected provider that this project will be partially funded with RRC TA 
Match Funding which will require regular updates to RRC and that the final product aligns with RRC 
Certified expectations.


The community has reviewed the expectations and responsibilities document from Form 1 (and found 
in the funding guide) and recommits that it is willing and capable to conduct the project within these 
parameters.


The community agrees that any cost overruns are the responsibility of the community.


The community understands that it will need to sign a formal grant agreement with MEDC (unless 
otherwise noted) which will include partial payments based on achieving established metrics.


The community understands a full scope and budget must be provided along with this request form.


The community agreements that the information contained within this request is true and accurate to 
the best of it's knowledge and that, if funding is approved, it will follow all outlined responsibilities 
within its control to keep the project on time and on budget.


Service Provider: 


How did the community select this provider? 


☐ Worked with RRC to identify a consultant
☐ Ongoing services contract
☐ Based on existing or past project relationship
☐ Through a local RFP process


Additional Information?


Community Representative Name/Title:  


Date: 







☐ APPROVED AS PROPOSED   ☐ APPROVED WITH MODIFICATIONS  ☐ NOT APPROVED


DATE OF DECISION:


FUNDING PATH:


TEAM PROPOSED PAYMENT SCHEDULE:


First Payment: 


Second Payment: 


REQUESTED MODIFICATIONS OR TEAM COMMENTS: 


Note to Planner: Ensure this completed request is uploaded to the appropriate Box folder.


Third Payment: 


Additional payments or details? Include more here:


RRC TEAM DECISION (Completed by Planner)





		Blank Page

		Blank Page



		Text1: Village of Lawton Master Plan and Zoning Ordinance 

		Text4: $42,980

		Dropdown3: [General Fund]

		Text2: Lisa Imus, Village Manager

		Text3:  Lisa Imus, Village Manager

		TextSignName: Lisa Imus, Village Manger

		DropDownMatchConfirmed: [Yes]

		DropdownSIGMA: [Yes]

		DropDownEFT: [Yes]

		CBAgree1: Yes

		CBAgree2: Yes

		CBAgree3: Yes

		CBAgree4: Yes

		CBApproved: Yes

		CBMod: Off

		CBNotApproved: Off

		Date8_af_date: 11/30/2021

		DropdownFunding: [Direct Grant]

		P1Percent: 25%

		P1Dollar: $7,500

		P1Metric: Upon execution of grant agreement and scheduling of the kick-off meeting. 

		P2Percent: 50%

		P2Dollar: $15,000

		P2Metric: When the Master Plan is adopted and available online.

		P3Percent: 25%

		P3Dollar: $7,500

		P3Metric: Once the Zoning Ordinance is adopted and available online.

		TextAdditionalPayments: - Have 4 out of the 7 BP’s completed by the end of the Master Plan project.- Have all 7 BP’s completed by the end of the zoning project.

		TextAdditionalRRCComments: 

		TextOtherInfo: Due to RRC allowing Lawton to apply for both Master Plan and Zoning RRC TA Funding at the same time as a special consideration, the additional task of completing all of Best Practice 4 during the duration of the two projects will be added to the grant agreement. Details are as follows:- Have 4 out of the 7 BP’s completed by the end of the Master Plan project.- Have all 7 BP’s completed by the end of the zoning project. This is to ensure that RRC progress continues while the planning projects are underway.

		TextProjDesc: The Village of Lawton is undertaking its first master plan, and in conjunction with that, a new zoning ordinance.  These are the two main components that the Village needs to contract for services in order to receive RRC Certification.  The remaining requirements can be accomplished by internal staff, and should all be nearing completion by the time the zoning ordinance revision is approved.  Because the Master Plan's goals and objectives will be regulated by the zoning ordinance, the Village has chosen to lump them together as one project with one contractor.  The Village believes this will achieve the best end product, as the contractor will be very familiar with the project's goals and objectives and create efficiencies with cost and timing.The major components of the project will include:Task 1 – Audit of Existing Plans + PrioritiesTask 2 – Community Profile + EngagementTask 3 – Issues and Opportunities IdentificationTask 4 – Vision, Goals and ObjectivesTask 5 - Evaluate Utility Assessment + Incorporate FindingsTask 6 – Second Review of Plan + Assessment by Expert on current Housing TrendsTask 7 – Master Plan and Document for Public ReviewTask 8 – Implementation and Zoning PlansTask 9 – Final PlanTask 10 - Amend and Update the Zoning OrdinanceBest Practices being achieved with this project include:1 Master Plan to reflect Lawton's desired direction (including complete street plan, and new zoning ordinance)2 Zoning Ordinance will be rewritten to reflect the Master Plan's direction, including areas and types of new development, a variety of housing options, non-motorized transportation considerations, flexible parking standards, green infrastructure options and USER FRIENDLY.3 Assist in the establishment of Development Review policies and procedures based in input from the Master Plan Process4 Facilitate Education and Training opportunities through the Master Plan and Zoning project as well as identify where future needs will be after planning process.5 Assist to identify Village's Redevelopment Ready Sites6 Assist in the development of Economic Strategy and Marketing plansThe ultimate objective of Lawton's Master Plan will be to establish a community vision through public engagement and identify how to implement that vision. The plan will be an essential document that guides future development throughout the community, adding predictability and community support to the development process. The Zoning Ordinance will assist the Village in achieving that vision.

		TextCompleteDate: September 2023

		CBRRC: Off

		CBOngoing: Off

		CBRelationship: Off

		CBRFP: Yes

		TextProvider: Progressive AE

		CBAgree5: Yes

		CBScope: Yes

		TextMilestonesProposed: 1st Payment Milestone: 25% Upon execution of grant agreement and scheduling of the kick-off meeting. 2nd Payment Milestone: 50% When the Master Plan is adopted and available online.3rd Payment Milestone: 25% Once the Zoning Ordinance is adopted and available online.

		Date1_af_date: November 24, 2021

		TextSplit: 75% up to $30,000 ($30,000) / 25% ($12,980)







Redevelopment Ready Communities (RRC) 
Technical Assistance (TA) Match Funding  
Formal Funding Request 

REQUEST INFORMATION (Completed by Community) 

Project Title:

Project Summary:
A brief description of the project is fine. At a minimum, note major steps/components and which best practices are being met by this project.

Estimated month/year of completion:

Community Point of Contact (Name/Title): 

Name & Title of Authorized Signer(s) (i.e. for grant agreements):  

Does the community have an account in SIGMA? 

Does the community have Electronic Fund Transfers (EFTs) set up in SIGMA?

Project Cost (Total):

Source of local government match:

Has the local match been confirmed?

Proposed Split (50/50, 75/25, etc. – include dollar amounts too):

Requested Payment Schedule/Milestones 
The grant agreement will include at least two payments. Use this space to propose payment milestones if the community has particular ideas in mind.  
Milestones can expand beyond the specific project to include commitments to complete other RRC best practices. If left blank, the team will craft milestones 
which will be confirmed with the community prior to drafting the grant agreement.

Note: Go to File -> Save As to save the file prior to filling it out. This will ensure it saves correctly.

This is the second form to be completed by a community seeking RRC TA Match Funding. The 
information in this form will be used to by the RRC Team to make a final determination of funding for 
the requested project. Information from this form will be incorporated into the official grant 
agreement. For full details on the RRC TA Match Funding process, visit 
www.miplace.org/rrctamatch.  A full scope and budget must be submitted with this request.

http://www.miplace.org/rrctamatch


CONFIRMATION & ACCURACY OF INFORMATION (Completed by Community) 

The community has informed the selected provider that this project will be partially funded with RRC TA 
Match Funding which will require regular updates to RRC and that the final product aligns with RRC 
Certified expectations.

The community has reviewed the expectations and responsibilities document from Form 1 (and found 
in the funding guide) and recommits that it is willing and capable to conduct the project within these 
parameters.

The community agrees that any cost overruns are the responsibility of the community.

The community understands that it will need to sign a formal grant agreement with MEDC (unless 
otherwise noted) which will include partial payments based on achieving established metrics.

The community understands a full scope and budget must be provided along with this request form.

The community agreements that the information contained within this request is true and accurate to 
the best of it's knowledge and that, if funding is approved, it will follow all outlined responsibilities 
within its control to keep the project on time and on budget.

Service Provider: 

How did the community select this provider? 

☐ Worked with RRC to identify a consultant
☐ Ongoing services contract
☐ Based on existing or past project relationship
☐ Through a local RFP process

Additional Information?

Community Representative Name/Title:  

Date: 



☐ APPROVED AS PROPOSED   ☐ APPROVED WITH MODIFICATIONS  ☐ NOT APPROVED

DATE OF DECISION:

FUNDING PATH:

TEAM PROPOSED PAYMENT SCHEDULE:

First Payment: 

Second Payment: 

REQUESTED MODIFICATIONS OR TEAM COMMENTS: 

Note to Planner: Ensure this completed request is uploaded to the appropriate Box folder.

Third Payment: 

Additional payments or details? Include more here:

RRC TEAM DECISION (Completed by Planner)



Attached is the article that went out in the newsletter last week about the water and sewer 

increase.  It is actually a longer version than what was published because this version was too 

large to fit in the allocated space.  We will continue to educate residents on the increases in the 

January and February newsletters.   

 

Lawton’s water and sewer system is a multi-million-dollar investment that directly affects the 

health, safety, and overall quality of life in our community. It is the Village Council’s 

responsibility to safeguard the water and sewer system for our customers now and into the 

future. 

 

Over the past year, the Village has completed a water and sewer rate study. The purpose of the 

study was to determine what rates are necessary to support a budget that will provide adequate 

operation of our system now and in the future. The result of the analysis is that a rate increase 

for both water and sewer are necessary. 

 
There are several reasons that impact why the Village must increase the water and sewer rates.   

• Over the last two years, the water and sewer expenses have exceeded revenues by 

$450,000.  While expenses have increased, water rates have not been adjusted since 

2012 and sewer rates have not been adjusted since 2019.  

 

• While rigorous routine sampling shows our water meets all standards related to lead and 

copper, a new State of Michigan mandate (the Lead and Copper Rule), requires all 

water services be free of lead components.  This unfunded mandate requires Lawton to 

eliminate all lead lines over the next 20 years. The current estimated cost to replace all 

of the water services with lead components is budgeted at over $3.5 million over next 20 

years. 

 

• In addition to the Lead and Copper requirements, over the next ten years, another $4.5 

million dollars will need to be invested in our aging water and sewer infrastructure to 

maintain a safe and efficient operation of the system. 

 

• Also contributing to the rate increase is a decrease in water sales.  Over the last four 

years, the amount of water sold decreased by more than 30% (55 million gallons). The 

decrease comes from both a declined industrial and manufacturing use as well as 

customers switching to efficient appliances and implementing water saving practices.  

 

• Many residents ask what other communities are charging for water and sewer compared 

to Lawton.  It is important to understand that each community has a unique system to 

establish rates - including population; type of water/sewer treatment; short and long-term 

service needs; debt obligations and capital improvement responsibilities. The Village is 

committed to meeting the needs of our system, and our rates must support our budget to 

provide safe and reliable water and sewer services to our community. 



At the December 14th Council meeting, the Village Council will be addressing the rate increase.  

The new rates will take effect with the March 2022 billing cycle. It is anticipated that the increase 

for both water and sewer combined will be approximately $20.00 per month for the average 

residential customer.  We understand that rate increases are difficult for everyone. Your January 

and February bills will reflect the current rate, as well as the future rate, in order to help you to 

budget accordingly.  Please contact Village Hall 269.624.6407 with any questions. 



PUBLIC NOTICE 
2022 Village of Lawton Public Meetings 

 

 
  

125 S. Main Street, Lawton, MI 49065 
Office:  269.624.6407; Website: www.lawtonmi.gov 

All public meetings are open to the public, either at Village Hall or via Zoom.  
Details on where and how the meeting will be held will be included with each meeting’s agenda; available on 
our website:  www.lawtonmi.gov and posted to the front window of Village Hall, prior to each meeting. 

Meeting dates and times are subject to change.  
Schedule may be adjusted in the future to address conflicts due to holidays or elections. 
 

COUNCIL 
7:00 PM 

(2ND & 4TH Tuesday) 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
7:00 PM 

(3RD Wednesday) 
January 11 & 25 January 19 
February 8 & 22 February 16 

March 8 & 22 March 16 
April 12 & 26 April 20 
May 10 & 24 May 18 
June 14 & 28 June 15 
July 12 & 26 July 20 

August 9 & 23 August 17 
September 13 & 27 September 21 

October 11 & 25 October 19 
November 8 & 22 November 16 
December 13 & 27 December 21 

 

 

   

 

 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

As Needed 

 

Library Board Meetings 

7:00 pm 

Last Monday of each Month 

 

Planning Commission 
7:00 PM  1ST Tuesday 

January 4 
 February 1 

March 1 
April 5 
May 3 
June 7 
July 5 

August 2 
September 6 

October 4 
November 1 
December 6 



 
 
Good Afternoon All, 
 
Below are summaries and project updates for the various projects we are working on for the 
Village.  If you have any questions, need revisions or additional information, please feel free to 
contact me. 
 
Sewer / Water Rate Updates: 

• The Village, Wightman, and Baker Tilly met again on 11/18/2021 and discussed 
water/sewer rates and the proposed CIP.  

• Meeting with the Water and Sewer Committee took place on 11/23/2021 to introduce 
rate options.  Discussion included the proposed projects and bonding vs. cash funding. 

• Invoice – No invoice/billing for this work from Wightman. 
 
Communitywide Capital Improvement Plan (CCIP): 

• Status – Once we work thru the rate updates, I can finalize the CIP with updated 
timing.  The Report is about 90% complete and will be finalized with the CIP including 
cost estimates and resources as appendices.  I am working with our Transportation team 
to verify the road projects since there have been changes. 

• Once CIP is finalized, our GIS team will finalize the GIS module which shows our 
proposed projects on an interactive map. 

• Invoice – Invoice to be sent later this month. 
 
GIS Services: 

• GIS Zoning Map – The Zoning Map is live on the Village website and I already have 
used it multiple times.  Very handy.  

• GIS Water Map – The GIS water map is complete. 
• These projects will be closed out. 

 
Proposals: 

• Cemetery – Proposal sent on 11/26/2021.  The work will consist of engineering, 
surveying, and GIS services. 

• Facility Analysis – Proposal sent on 9/21/2021. 
• Sewer Extension to House on Morrill – Proposal Sent on 12/3/2021. 

 
Upcoming projects: 

• Potholing project for EGLE’s DSMI Requirements.  Currently in the CIP for 2022. 
• Private side water services for the 2023 MDOT Project. 

 
Thank you very much, 
 
 
Paul Harvey PE  

OFFICE 269.605.4103 MOBILE 269.760.5082  
433 E RANSOM STREET, KALAMAZOO, MI 49007  
GOWIGHTMAN.COM  
 

tel:2696054103
tel:2697605082
http://gowightman.com/


PUBLIC SERVICES REPORT 
 November 2021 

 
CEMETERY 
1) We had 5 interments in the month of November  
    Hours for the month – 32    Overtime – 2 
 
MOTORPOOL 
1) General maintenance was performed on equipment 
2) The International dump truck is back with the Wing plow installed   
    Hours for the Month – 42 Overtime – 0 
 
BUILDINGS & GROUNDS 
1) No activity other than general maintenance 
2) met with Abonmarche to go through the building. 
3) watertight roofing is doing an evaluation of our roof and fixing some leaks. 
4) new heater is being installed in the DPW building. 
    Hours for the month – 20 Overtime – 0 
 
CIVIC ACTIVITIES 
1)  we have been getting Christmas decorations organized and put up  
    Hours for the month - 9 
 
PARKS 
1) General maintenance and cleanup was performed.  
    Hours for the month – 33 Overtime –  14 
 
STREETS & SIDEWALKS 
1) we have been pluggin away at the leaves trying to get them done before bad weather 
 
 

Hours for the month 
Major Preservation – 0   Local Preservation – 0 

Major winter Maint. – 2  Local winter Maint. – 0 
Streets (not act 51) – 260  Sidewalks – 0 

 
Vacation hours – 56   Sick time – 16 

 
 
        Respectfully Submitted, 
     
        Todd Hackenberg 
        Superintendent of Public Works 
 
 
 
 



WATER/SEWER OPERATIONS REPORT 

November 2021 

 

1)  12,394,000 Gallons of water were pumped during the month compared to 9,394,000 in 2021. 

2) The average daily usage was 413,133 gallons. 

3) Routine sampling was done with all samples being non detect. 

 

 

Total hours for the month Water – 34 Overtime – 10 

    Sewer – 169 Overtime – 14 

 

 

       Respectfully submitted, 

       Todd Hackenberg  
       Superintendent of Public Works     
               
        
     



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 December 7, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 

Village of Lawton WWTP 
Operational report 

 
 
 

 
 
Wastewater Treatment 

 
• In November a total of 2.03 million gallons of treated wastewater was discharged into the tributary 

to the South Branch of the Paw Paw River. The daily effluent flows averaged 68,000 gallons per 
day, which is approximately 34% of the hydraulic capacity of the plant. 

 
 
Regulatory Matters 

 
• The Discharge Monitoring Report for November has been electronically submitted to the MDEQ. 

 
 
 

 

Land Application Program             
 
 10,000 gallons of  activated sludge was pumped over to the sludge storage tank. 

   

 

 

 

 
 

 

 



LAWTON POLICE DEPARTMENT – COUNCIL REPORT 

NOVEMBER 2021 

Calls for Service/Complaints------------------------------91 

Ordinance complaints--------------------------------------3      

     Blight (0)            Zoning (0)              Misc. (3) 

Traffic stops---------------------------------------------------14 

     Citations issued (10)            Verbal warnings (11) 

Arrests---------------------------------------------------------5 

Accidents------------------------------------------------------2  

Parking citations---------------------------------------------0 

HOURS WORKED:   Scheduled (Full-time)   788 

    Scheduled (Part-time)   0 

    Overtime hours                23 

    Vacation hours                 48 

    Sick leave hours    24   

COMMUNITY POLICING: 

Officers made (59) field contacts and (37) business contacts. 

Officers assisted with escorting the Lawton football team to and from 
the village as they traveled to their semi-final and then state 
championship games. 



NOTABLE INCIDENTS: 

S. Main and 72nd Ave. - Officer Weekly stopped a vehicle after observing
a traffic violation.  After contacting the driver, Officer Weekly
conducted an investigation into drunk driving.  The driver was
subsequently arrested and charged with OUID.

Follow up – After the search warrant was executed last month, a 
fingerprint lifted at the original crime scene came back from the MSP 
Lab in Grand Rapids and matched the previously identified suspect.  
The suspect was contacted and a confession was obtained.  Some of 
the stolen property was also recovered. 

Officer Gibbs investigated the larceny of a lawnmower.  The juvenile 
suspect’s mother contacted the police.  Officer Gibbs was able to 
recover the lawnmower before the owner had reported it stolen.  The 
juvenile was charged with stealing the property. 

ADDITIONAL: 

For the month of November, Lawton officers spend many hours of 
directed traffic patrol, specifically targeting speed violations.  The 
number of hours spent in the following locations is as follows: 

6.83 hours – Main St.  

11.33 hours – All other areas within the Village 

Total hours – 18.16 

Respectfully,  Chief Mack


	PBall grant award.pdf
	Sheet1


	Text1: Village of Lawton Master Plan and Zoning Ordinance 
	Text2: Lisa Imus, Village Manager
	Text3:  Lisa Imus, Village Manager
	DropdownSIGMA: [Yes]
	DropDownEFT: [Yes]
	Text4: $42,980
	TextSplit: 75% up to $30,000 ($30,000) / 25% ($12,980)
	Dropdown3: [General Fund]
	DropDownMatchConfirmed: [Yes]
	TextMilestonesProposed: 1st Payment Milestone: 25% Upon execution of grant agreement and scheduling of the kick-off meeting. 2nd Payment Milestone: 50% When the Master Plan is adopted and available online.3rd Payment Milestone: 25% Once the Zoning Ordinance is adopted and available online.
	TextProjDesc: The Village of Lawton is undertaking its first master plan, and in conjunction with that, a new zoning ordinance.  These are the two main components that the Village needs to contract for services in order to receive RRC Certification.  The remaining requirements can be accomplished by internal staff, and should all be nearing completion by the time the zoning ordinance revision is approved.  Because the Master Plan's goals and objectives will be regulated by the zoning ordinance, the Village has chosen to lump them together as one project with one contractor.  The Village believes this will achieve the best end product, as the contractor will be very familiar with the project's goals and objectives and create efficiencies with cost and timing.The major components of the project will include:Task 1 – Audit of Existing Plans + PrioritiesTask 2 – Community Profile + EngagementTask 3 – Issues and Opportunities IdentificationTask 4 – Vision, Goals and ObjectivesTask 5 - Evaluate Utility Assessment + Incorporate FindingsTask 6 – Second Review of Plan + Assessment by Expert on current Housing TrendsTask 7 – Master Plan and Document for Public ReviewTask 8 – Implementation and Zoning PlansTask 9 – Final PlanTask 10 - Amend and Update the Zoning OrdinanceBest Practices being achieved with this project include:1 Master Plan to reflect Lawton's desired direction (including complete street plan, and new zoning ordinance)2 Zoning Ordinance will be rewritten to reflect the Master Plan's direction, including areas and types of new development, a variety of housing options, non-motorized transportation considerations, flexible parking standards, green infrastructure options and USER FRIENDLY.3 Assist in the establishment of Development Review policies and procedures based in input from the Master Plan Process4 Facilitate Education and Training opportunities through the Master Plan and Zoning project as well as identify where future needs will be after planning process.5 Assist to identify Village's Redevelopment Ready Sites6 Assist in the development of Economic Strategy and Marketing plansThe ultimate objective of Lawton's Master Plan will be to establish a community vision through public engagement and identify how to implement that vision. The plan will be an essential document that guides future development throughout the community, adding predictability and community support to the development process. The Zoning Ordinance will assist the Village in achieving that vision.
	TextCompleteDate: September 2023
	CBAgree1: Yes
	CBAgree2: Yes
	CBAgree3: Yes
	CBAgree4: Yes
	CBAgree5: Yes
	TextSignName: Lisa Imus, Village Manger
	TextOtherInfo: Due to RRC allowing Lawton to apply for both Master Plan and Zoning RRC TA Funding at the same time as a special consideration, the additional task of completing all of Best Practice 4 during the duration of the two projects will be added to the grant agreement. Details are as follows:- Have 4 out of the 7 BP’s completed by the end of the Master Plan project.- Have all 7 BP’s completed by the end of the zoning project. This is to ensure that RRC progress continues while the planning projects are underway.
	CBRRC: Off
	CBOngoing: Off
	CBRelationship: Off
	CBRFP: Yes
	TextProvider: Progressive AE
	CBScope: Yes
	Date1_af_date: November 24, 2021
	CBApproved: Yes
	CBMod: Off
	CBNotApproved: Off
	Date8_af_date: 11/30/2021
	DropdownFunding: [Direct Grant]
	P1Percent: 25%
	P1Dollar: $7,500
	P1Metric: Upon execution of grant agreement and scheduling of the kick-off meeting. 
	P2Percent: 50%
	P2Dollar: $15,000
	P2Metric: When the Master Plan is adopted and available online.
	P3Percent: 25%
	P3Dollar: $7,500
	P3Metric: Once the Zoning Ordinance is adopted and available online.
	TextAdditionalPayments: - Have 4 out of the 7 BP’s completed by the end of the Master Plan project.- Have all 7 BP’s completed by the end of the zoning project.
	TextAdditionalRRCComments: 


